# CALIFORNIA STATE BOARD OF BARBERING AND COSMETOLOGY

### **HEALTH AND SAFETY ADVISORY COMMITTEE MEETING**

### **MINUTES OF MARCH 20, 2023**

#### **COMMITTEE MEMBERS PRESENT**

Calimay Pham
Reese Isbell
Danielle Munoz
Jude Balmin
Paul Bryson
Brandon Hart
Brandy Hamilton
Paula Johnson
Leslie Roste
Yumi Youn

#### STAFF MEMBERS PRESENT

Kristy Underwood, Executive Officer Carrie Harris, Deputy Executive Officer Sabina Knight, Board Legal Counsel Allison Lee, Board Project Manager

### **Committee Members Absent**

Giovanni Harfouche Asia Jackson

### 1. AGENDA ITEM #1, CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL/ESTABLISHMENT OF QUORUM

Calimay Pham, Committee Chair, called the meeting to order at approximately 9:00 a.m. and confirmed the presence of a quorum.

### 2. AGENDA ITEM #2, ELECTION OF COMMITTEE CHAIRPERSON

Chair Pham stated that this is an annual election. She indicated that she was happy to continue serving and welcomed anyone else wanting to serve. She noted that a person doesn't need to be a member of the main Board to serve as Chairperson of this Committee.

**Motion:** Calimay Pham moved to nominate herself as Chairperson of the Committee. Danielle Munoz seconded. No comments were received from the public.

Motion to nominate Calimay Pham as Chairperson of the Committee carried nine yes, 0 no, and 0 abstain, per roll call vote as follows:

The following Committee Members voted "Yes": Calimay Pham, Reese Isbell, Danielle Munoz, Jude Balmin, Paul Bryson, Brandon Hart, Brandy Hamilton, Leslie Roste, and Yumi Youn.

## 3. AGENDA ITEM #3, EXECUTIVE OFFICER'S OPENING REMARKS (Kristy Underwood).

Ms. Underwood stated that the Health and Safety Committee is statutorily required. The Committee consists of Board members, outside members, licensees, and other experts who help in decision-making.

Ms. Underwood mentioned that the Committee would discuss the health and safety regulations under agenda item 5. She noted that the Committee had worked on the regulations for a very long time, and she hoped that they would choose to move them forward to the Board for approval so that the regulatory process could begin. She indicated that the regulatory process is quite long, and it will be long before the regulations are enacted. They will have to go through the Department of Public Health for review as well and might still see some extensive changes to them.

### 4. AGENDA ITEM #4, REVIEW AND POSSIBLE APPROVAL OF SEPTEMBER 26, 2022, COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES.

**Motion:** Reese Isbell moved to approve September 26, 2022, Committee Meeting Minutes. Brandy Hamilton seconded. No comments were received from the public.

Motion to approve September 26, 2022, Committee Meeting Minutes carried 5 yes, 0 no, and 4 abstain, per roll call vote as follows:

The following Committee Members voted "Yes": Calimay Pham, Reese Isbell, Brandy Hamilton, Leslie Roste, and Yumi Youn.

The following Committee Members abstained: Danielle Munoz, Jude Balmin, Paul Bryson, and Brandon Hart.

# 5. AGENDA ITEM #5, DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE RECOMMENDATION REGARDING POSSIBLE AMENDMENTS TO HEALTH AND SAFETY REGULATIONS.

Ms. Underwood went through the regulations package page by page. The Committee received no comments regarding the definitions on pages 1 through 3.

On page 4, Mr. Isbell noted a grammar mistake. He indicated that in paragraph four, point nine, the statement said that 'all establishment owners, school owners, and licensees shall not have all tools.' He noted that the word 'all' should be replaced with the word 'any.' Ms. Underwood agreed that it should be 'any.' Chair Pham pointed out that it cannot be 'any' because people would be labeling everything either dirty or clean to avoid getting inspected. They should have some tools marked dirty and some labeled clean.

No comments were received from the Committee on page 5.

No comments were received from the public.

No comments were received regarding page 6. On page 7, Mr. Bryson noted that a part of section C stated that the basin should be cleaned and disinfected after every use. He pointed out that the basin is not a skin contact situation. It should therefore be enough that they change the liner and keep the basin clean, not necessarily disinfect the basin itself. Mr. Bryson stated that cleaning is 99% of disinfection, and since people will be cleaning the basins and changing the liners after each client, he wondered why they should be required to disinfect the basins. He noted that people are spending money and putting disinfectant down the drain and that only a few people would do the disinfection unless the inspector is standing there. He opined that that requirement would be unenforceable and unnecessary.

Ms. Roste agreed with Mr. Bryson's sentiments, adding that most states are going with just cleaning between pedicures when a liner is used and then disinfecting fully at the end of the day. She mentioned that this is the most common practice, and she had not seen an increase in infection or injuries with that change.

Ms. Hamilton stated that it would depend on the type of liner used. She mentioned that some pedicure bowls have hard shell liners that are physically picked up and removed, and some are trash bag-type style liners intended to fit the bowl. She indicated that the only way to remove water from these is to puncture the bag and allow the water into the pedicure basin. Ms. Hamilton noted that sometimes debris and clippings are left in the basin depending on the kind of treatment one is getting. Someone getting a pedicure can also be punctured at some point throughout the service. She thus felt that based on these factors, there should be some spray or wipe-down disinfectant of the basin.

Ms. Underwood noted that even if the disinfection portion is removed, licensees would still be required to drain the water from the basin and remove and clean all the removable parts individually by scrubbing with a clean brush, liquid soap, and water. They would rinse the inside of the basin with water, insert any clean removable parts, and then wipe the basin dry with a new paper towel. Steps five and six would be removed and refilled with water and the appropriate amount of EPA-registered disinfectant.

Ms. Roste mentioned that disinfectants have a 10-minute contact time. Therefore, removing the disinfection step would mean saving time and conserving water. She noted California, does not have a lot of water usually, so conserving water at this point would be significant.

Chair Pham asked if the Committee would have a similar opinion about removing and scrubbing the parts after every use. She felt that that presented the same issue as the disinfection process. She mentioned that she still needed to see people stopping to remove the parts and scrub them whenever she got a pedicure.

Ms. Roste felt that the Committee should only remove something from the regulations if it is being done. She stated that there should be a realistic line between necessary and worthy of time and attention without putting anyone at risk. She also mentioned that

everywhere she goes around the country, people only do some of the steps. She has also never seen anyone removing all the parts whenever she is out inspecting. The common steps she has seen are cleaning the bowl, rinsing it down and scrubbing, removing the parts, and doing the full disinfection at the end of the day.

Ms. Underwood mentioned that inspectors usually find the removable parts dirty. Some parts go inside the liner, and they have magnetic jets placed where the feet are. She, therefore, suggested leaving that step in.

Mr. Bryson stated that some people use tabs of warm water and tubs with various stirring and agitating devices. He indicated that since the devices touch the water that touches the clients' feet, they should be disinfected between uses. The liner would only spare one the necessity of cleaning the tub itself.

Deputy Executive Officer Carrie Harris noted that Section C (c) of the draft addressed the removable magnetic jets. The Section states that removable magnetic jets shall be cleaned after every use according to the requirements of 979(a) and must not be stored in the foot basin when the basin is not in use. Ms. Underwood agreed, adding that section 979(a) does require disinfection. Therefore, the removable parts will be needed to be disinfected. She also mentioned that a lot of salons are already doing this process. The Committee thus agreed that for Section 980.1, only steps five and six should be removed.

No comments were received from the Committee on pages 8 through 11.

### **Public Comment:**

Jamie Schrabeck from Precision Nails supported Mr. Bryson's comments about the excessive disinfection that would be required after removing a liner. She mentioned that she has been advocating for waterless services since 2005 and noted that what needed to be addressed in the health and safety regulations was that cleaning the feet, hands. hair, face, or body of the client was optional. Ms. Schrabeck indicated that the language is written in such a way that would make people think that cleaning is not an option. She further pointed out that everyone uses disposable supplies, but some do not use pedicure equipment. Therefore, any cleaning done during the procedures is above and beyond what the health and safety regulations require.

No comments were received from the Committee or public on pages 11 through 21.

Motion: Danielle Munoz moved to recommend to the full Board the updated language in Title 16 Code of Regulations, Sections 977 through 995, with the noted amendment on Page 7 of the text, removing numbers five and six in the listed requirements for cleaning the foot basin. Paul Bryson seconded. No comments were received from the public.

Motion carried 11 yes, 0 no, and 0 abstain, per roll call vote as follows:

The following Committee Members voted "Yes": Calimay Pham, Reese Isbell, Danielle Munoz, Jude Balmin, Paul Bryson, Brandon Hart, Brandy Hamilton, Leslie Roste, and Yumi Youn.

### 6. AGENDA ITEM #6, PUBLIC COMMENT ON ITEMS NOT ON THE AGENDA

Jamie Schrabeck noted that the language authorizing this Committee's existence focuses on labor laws and the Board's responsibility to inform licensees about their rights. She mentioned that the Board's website contains the laws and rights, but it needs to be updated since it does not reference some bills, such as SB 490. This, according to her, was a problem, considering how many people in the State are usually compensated via commission. She requested that the Committee looks at how they are addressing the mandate from the legislature to address labor laws.

### 7. AGENDA ITEM #7, SUGGESTIONS FOR FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS

Chair Pham inquired about timelines for the next Committee meeting and what to expect for that meeting. Ms. Underwood stated that a date is yet to be set for the next meeting. She will work with the Committee members to settle on a date. She noted that the Committee had in the past looked extensively at the risks involved with all of the health and safety violations. She indicated that that document must mirror the regulations because some have changed. Staff will bring back a draft of the regulations and the fine schedule. At the next meeting, the Committee will be required to look at the regulations and fines to determine if the risks are appropriate for the penalties.

No comments were received from the public.

### 8. AGENDA ITEM #8, ADJOURNMENT

There being no further business to discuss, the meeting adjourned at approximately 9:51 a.m.